

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE INFRASTRUCTURE, SAFETY AND GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE HELD ON 12th OCTOBER 2021

- PRESENT: Councillor S Goodall (Chair), Councillors T Clements, J Chesworth, R Claymore, D Maycock, Dr S Peaple, B Price and M Summers
- CABINET: Councillor Stephen Doyle Councillor Jeremy Oates Councillor Robert Pritchard

The following officers were present: Joanne Sands (Assistant Director Partnerships), Matthew Fletcher (Head of Economic Development and Regeneration) and Jo Hutchison (Democratic Services, Scrutiny and Elections Officer)

Apologies received from: Councillor(s) A Cooper

34 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor A Cooper.

35 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the previous two meetings held on 15th September 2021 and 27th September 2021 were approved as a correct record.

(Moved by Councillor S Goodall and seconded by Councillor R Claymore)

36 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

37 UPDATE FROM THE CHAIR

The Chair reported that he had met with Officers and the Portfolio Holder for Regulatory and Community Safety regarding questions on Travellers following the working group's meeting. The Chair reported that Officers and the Portfolio Holder expected to be able to bring an update to this Committee in the new year for this Committee's consideration.

The Chair moved and the Committee agreed that the agenda order be amended such that item 7 (Electric Vehicle Charging Points) followed by item 6 (Public Space Protection Orders Kettlebrook and Warwickshire Moor) be considered in that order prior to the remaining agenda items.

38 ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING POINTS

The Chair provided an overview of this item and the previous recommendations of this Committee to Cabinet from 2019 onwards. The Chair reported that he had requested an update on progress be brought to this Committee and he welcomed to the meeting the Leader of the Council, the Portfolio Holder for Environment and Leisure and the Head of Economic Development and Regeneration.

The Leader of the Council reported that, since May 2021, each Cabinet member's portfolio included responsibility for Climate Change agenda and that the Portfolio Holder for Environment and Leisure had specific responsibility for proposals for electric vehicle charging points on Borough owned assets such as car parks and garage sites.

The Head of Economic Development and Regeneration reported that operating model 2, which was the method selected by Cabinet to be pursued, involved the lease of land to an EV charging point operating company. This involved low upfront costs and low maintenance for the Council and which provided the Council with less control, less income going forward, and meant that the location would be limited by the EV company's preferences. A further marketing exercise had been pursued, and whilst the criteria had meant that this had been challenging, it had resulted in two spaces in two car parks with high traffic flow being identified and had resulted in an operating company entering into detailed negotiations with the Council which would lead to 2 fast charging points in each of Riverside and Bolebridge car parks.

The Head of Economic Development and Regeneration reported that he was also aware that there were discussions between private landowners and charging companies for further charging points (slower charging levels) in the Borough.

The Committee sought clarification on the following areas:

- Further details on the expected timescales to deliver these fast chargers, where the Head of Economic Development responded that, subject to the legal negotiations progressing well, he would be disappointed if this was not possible by the end of the financial year 2021/22.
- Whether the Council was pursuing Government funding of up to £14,000 which was available, where the Leader responded that the Leader had a meeting with the Office for Zero Emission Vehicles to look at additional funding to support the delivery of EV chargers within areas such as Tamworth where the market had struggled to deliver sufficient capabilities.

- The variety of charging capacities available for different purposes, where the Leader reported that it was understood that there was a need for various types of charging, fast and trickle charging.
- Whether further consideration including commercial details and financial costs associated with the proposals which would be likely to be confidential could be considered during a private meeting. The Leader proposed that a confidential briefing from the Head of Economic Development and Regeneration would be circulated to members, which the Committee agreed would be helpful.

The Portfolio Holder reported that the garage clearance project which was underway and was designed to provide additional parking for residents, would additionally where possible, look to include electric charging points for residents as well.

Additionally the Portfolio Holder reported that he was seeking further information from Staffordshire County Council on their proposals to utilise the Government's funding available for on-street EV charging points and the Portfolio Holder was looking to encourage Staffordshire County Council to use the Leys as a trial for this.

The Committee thanked the Officer, the Leader and Portfolio Holder for the update and the progress made.

RESOLVED that the Committee noted the update received.

(Moved by Councillor Dr S Peaple and seconded by Councillor S Goodall)

The Leader, Portfolio Holder and Head of Economic Development and Regeneration then left the meeting.

39 PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDERS KETTLEBROOK AND WARWICKSHIRE MOOR

The Chair welcomed the Portfolio Holder for Regulatory and Community Safety and the Assistant Director, Partnerships to the meeting to present the report in respect of the proposed extension of Public Space Protection Orders (PSPOs) in Kettlebrook and Bolehall (Warwickshire Moor).

The Portfolio Holder introduced the Assistant Director, Partnerships who provided an overview to the Committee of the previous approval process for the two PSPOs which were put in place in 2018. It was reported that anti-social behaviour in the areas had reduced and that the PSPOs were considered to have had a deterrent effect. The Police had been consulted on the proposal to renew the PSPOs and the Police were fully supportive of this. It was reported that no fixed penalties had been issued under these PSPOs. Whilst consideration had been given to extending the boundaries of the areas covered by of the PSPOs, the Police were supportive to keep the border as it currently was. Clarification was sought on why a small car park adjacent to the boundary on the Kettlebrook PSPO was not included, and it was reported that this was because on car parks the Police utilised, if necessary, the vehicle nuisance PSPO.

RESOLVED that the Committee approved delegation to the Portfolio Holder, Regulatory and Community Safety for the extension of the Public Space Protection Orders as outlined and attached in the Report.

(Moved by Councillor Dr S Peaple and seconded by Councillor B Price)

The Portfolio Holder and Assistant Director, Partnerships then left the meeting.

40 RESPONSES TO REPORTS OF THE INFRASTRUCTURE SAFETY & GROWTH COMMITTEE

The Chair reported that whilst no recommendations had been taken to Cabinet since 15th September 2021 meeting, Cabinet had received the Future High Streets Fund update at its meeting on 30th September 2021 and thanked this Committee for previously scrutinising the report.

41 CONSIDERATION OF MATTERS REFERRED TO THE INFRASTRUCTURE SAFETY & GROWTH COMMITTEE FROM CABINET OR COUNCIL

None specifically referred to this meeting.

42 FORWARD PLAN

The Committee reviewed the Forward Plan and considered that the following items could require future consideration:

- Council Housing Repairs Policy
- Future High Streets Fund

It was noted that Corporate Scrutiny Committee had reviewed the first 12 months performance of the existing Housing Repairs contract, and therefore the Chair agreed to contact the Chair of Corporate Scrutiny to coordinate further activity in this area.

43 WORKING GROUP UPDATES

The Vice-Chair reported that following a meeting with the Head of Environmental Health and the Portfolio Holder for Regulatory and Community Safety, it remained important for this Committee to receive further clarification on the processes followed by the Council and by the Police when Travellers access land within the Borough. The Chair reported that the Portfolio Holder and the Assistant Director had agreed to bring further details forward for this Committee's scrutiny in the new year.

44 INFRASTRUCTURE SAFETY & GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PLAN

The Committee considered and updated its work plan as follows. It was agreed that a new working group, chaired by Councillor B Price, be formed to consider facilities for HGV drivers in Tamworth following this matter being raised by residents.

Work Plan 2021 - 2022		
DATE	SUBJECT	
Quarterly updates	Future High Street Fund (Growth) – Quarterly updates – starting March 2021	
Date be confirmed 2021	Review of Council Housing Repairs Policy	
November 2021 (tbc)	Review of Taxi Licensing Policy – Points System	
23 November 2021	Future High Streets Fund update	
23 November 2021	Infrastructure Funding Statement	
Quarterly updates commencing pre 31.12.21	Waste Management	
Date to be confirmed – 2021 / 22	 Community Safety overview to include: Invitation to Tamworth Police Commander Invitation to Police, Crime and Fire Commissioner CCTV update E-Scooters and E-Bikes Modern Slavery update Business Crime Reduction Partnership Update 	
24 th March 2022	Future High Streets Fund update	
Date to be confirmed - 2021 /22	Garage Sites	
Date to be confirmed (early 2022)	Review of policy / engagement with stakeholders relating to Travellers	
July 2022 (tbc)	Fire Safety Update	
Date to be confirmed - 2022	EV Charging update	

Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Work Plan

Working Groups			
Торіс	Possible WG Members	Target IS&G Com	
Горіс	Possible wG members	Target 15&G Con	

		meeting date
Fireworks	Open to all	tbc
Review of policy /		
engagement relating to		
Travellers		
Facilities for HGV drivers in	Cllrs B Price (WG chair),	
Tamworth	Dr S Peaple and R	
	Claymore	

Upcoming Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee Meetings		
23 rd November 2021		
19 th January 2022		
24 th March 2022		

Chair